Champaign County Board

Facilities Committee
County of Champaign, Urbana, lllinois

MINUTES - Approved 2/8/2016

DATE:
TIME:
PLACE:

Tuesday, December 1, 2015

6:30 p.m.

Lyle Shields Meeting Room

Brookens Administrative Center

1776 E. Washington, Urbana, IL 61802

Committee Members

Present Absent
Gary Maxwell (Chair)
Giraldo Rosales (Vice Chair)
Jack Anderson

Josh Hartke

James Quisenberry

Jon Rector

Rachel Schwartz

County Staff: Dana Brenner (Facilities Director); Deb Busey (County Administrator); Tami Ogden (Deputy

County Administrator of Finance); Linda Lane (Administrative Assistant)

Others Present: Pattsi Petrie (Board Chair)

MINUTES

VI.

Call to Order
Committee Chair Maxwell called the meeting to order at 6:31 p.m.

Roll Call
A verbal roll call was taken and a quorum was declared present.

Approval of Agenda
MOTION by Mr. Rosales to approve the agenda; seconded by Mr. Hartke. Upon vote, the MOTION
CARRIED unanimously.

Approval of Minutes- November 3, 2015
MOTION by Mr. Hartke to approve the minutes of the November 3, 2015 meeting; seconded by Mr.
Rector. Upon vote, the MOTION CARRIED unanimously.

Public Participation
None

Communications

Mr. Maxwell thanked Mr. Rosales for chairing the November meeting. He commented that he was in
Australia and that he likes to try to get ideas from places he goes. He said he brought back some
clippings about managing aquifers and noted they are very serious out their aquifer management.

Champaign County Board
Facilities Committee 1 December 1, 2015



He felt they were several years ahead of what is done in lllinois. Mr. Maxwell said he also has a
clipping about problems a rural nursing home in Australia is having.

VIl. Discussion of Facility Condition Assessment Report

Mr. Maxwell felt they needed to start a discussion regarding the report. He said he put this on the
agenda for the committee to begin focusing work towards a solution for the deferred maintenance
backlog on County buildings. He noted that the Bailey Edward report is not a capital renewal and
facility master plan. Mr. Maxwell thought the report, along with the Sheriff’'s Operation Master
Planning report should provide information for the committee to move forward in forming a rational
approach to the deferred maintenance backlog. He stated that the report indicates some buildings
should be removed from the inventory. Mr. Maxwell talked about the costs to remove the buildings
from inventory and address the deferred maintenance backlog, and asked where the money would
come from. He pointed out that they have a responsibility to provide a safe, efficient, and humane
environment for the inmates and for correctional employees. He summarized what an updated
facility needed to include. Mr. Maxwell said that Bailey Edward will send a report regarding ADA
deficiencies and the cost to remediate those issues. He said it will be mandatory for the County Board
to fund the ADA remediation. He noted that they have been funding building maintenance at about
$835,000 per year for the last 2-3 years and said going forward they must focus on the most pressing
issues of ADA, life safety issues, and roofing. Mr. Maxwell said long-term they need to find the money
to maintain the buildings or decide which buildings to remove from the inventory or defer
maintenance on. He suggested it’s not too early to discuss putting the funding issue before voters in
November. Mr. Maxwell said it’s his opinion they must have a plan to reduce the backlog, be united
as a committee and County Board, and have the support of community leaders and organizations.

Mr. Maxwell opened the floor for comments, ideas, and questions from committee members.

Mr. Quisenberry commented he still has a concern the original courthouse building values are
insufficient to maintain the buildings we have. He said the Bailey Edward report is based on a model
that doesn’t recognize fancier features of older architecture. Mr. Quisenberry said they need to have
revenue dependency information regarding ILEAS before they can decide what to do with the
building.

Mr. Hartke felt things that can save money on other bills should be looked at first. He thought they
could should look at finding energy savings, consolidating office or storages space, and possibly
liquidating some buildings before going to the public for a tax increase. He noted that he is not
including the nursing home in this process though he knew others want to. He said he agrees with
Mr. Quisenberry regarding the courthouse. Mr. Hartke suggested asking for private donations, such
as the once received for the courthouse. He felt a %¢ facility sales tax isn’t the way to go and he
would oppose that.

Mr. Rosales suggested they hear from the Finance Committee about ideas they’'ve explored
concerning bonds or other sources of increased revenues or fees. He would like to know if there is
any revenue they could draw from that they currently have. He agreed with Mr. Hartke about not
increasing taxes.

Mr. Anderson said he agrees with Mr. Hartke but felt the nursing home shouldn’t be excluded. Mr.
Maxwell said he intentionally didn’t want to include the nursing home in this discussion. He said the
nursing home is currently funding its own repairs and putting money towards retiring the bonds. He
felt it needed to be included in the long term maintenance backlog, but would like to set it aside for
another discussion.

Mr. Maxwell said it sounds like they are beginning to make a decision and said what he is hearing is

that they don’t want a tax increase. He said if they want to reduce the backlog they will need to find

Champaign County Board
Facilities Committee 2 December 1, 2015



a new revenue stream. He said without it they won’t be able to reduce the deferred maintenance
backlog. Mr. Maxwell said they need to be united as a County Board to get a referendum passed.

Mr. Rector felt the nursing home is a big part of what’s being subsidized from here and felt it’s
unrealistic to separate it. Ms. Schwartz asked for clarification on subsidized, and said there is no
money that currently goes to the nursing home that can go to facilities because the nursing home
tax is dedicated. Mr. Rector felt a lot of people question whether the County should be in the nursing
home business, and it’s the type of thing to look at if something needs to be cut. Ms. Schwartz
pointed out that if it’s closed the money won’t go into facilities and they will actually lose money that
currently goes to pay bonds. Mr. Rector commented that it’s a philosophical issue.

Mr. Anderson said there are only so many dollars in the community. He suggested the potential sale
of the nursing home, to allow it to operate freely within the marketplace as a way to remove it from
our rolls, would mean they no longer have to pay the construction bond. He noted the subsidy of
$1.6 million annually to keep it going and will no longer be taxing the public to pay the bond. Ms.
Busey said its $1.1 million. Mr. Anderson said that money becomes revenue neutral and could be
used for building maintenance. He stated everyone knows there is no money available and they will
have to seek revenue. He felt the committee will have to decide how low they can go on maintenance
costs. Mr. Anderson suggested they look at their real estate portfolio and operational needs to see
how close they can get without affecting services. He said they should focus on what the committee
can do before going to Finance.

Mr. Rosales asked if they were receiving any revenue from the wind turbine farm. Ms. Busey said
that went onto the equalized assessed valuation a few years ago, and that is the basis for the property
tax. Mr. Rosales questioned if they couldn’t bond up to half of the $30 million they were almost going
to bond for the satellite jail. Ms. Schwartz pointed out that there is no plan to bond anything now
because there isn’t any money to do so. Mr. Rosales noted that several years ago the County had a
good enough credit rating to sell bonds, and felt they could get a loan to tackle only the facilities that
are in deplorable condition.

Ms. Schwartz inquired if the $4.5 million is an annual amount or just the backlog, and if it’s annual,
she asked what the backlog is. Mr. Maxwell replied the $4.5 million is the annual backlog over the
next 10 years. Mr. Rosales asked if that was with no construction. Mr. Maxwell said that is correct.

Mr. Maxwell said that 60-70% of the money is tied up in personnel. Ms. Busey said the annual budget
is $125 million. She said $35 million of that is the general fund and 70% of that is personnel. She
noted 53% of the total budget is personnel. She said outside the general fund are special revenue
funds that are dedicated to specific purposes. She said the real budget they have to work with is
general corporate, which is $35-36 million with 70% of that being personnel. She commented that
cuts have been made. Ms. Busey noted, with regard to consolidating, that most department heads
are looking for more space, and felt they have maximized the utilization of the buildings to the
greatest extent possible. She suggested the committee could take a day to see how the departments
use their spaces and look for ways to consolidate.

Mr. Maxwell said that he would like the committee to think on this some more and talk to their
constituents. He said they can talk to him as well and give him some idea of what they’d like him to
do the next month. He acknowledged they have a lot of work to do.

VIIl. Facilities Director’s Report
A. Update on Courthouse Window Replacement Project
Mr. Brenner reported that there are only two items left on the punch list, which should be done
by Friday. He summarized what was still left to do. He said they expect one final payment request
and gave a summary of the costs.

Champaign County Board
Facilities Committee 3 December 1, 2015



B. Update on Precast Concrete Panel Repair Project

Mr. Brenner stated that the satellite jail and JDC are 100% complete. He summarized what was
done at each building and noted that Highway is about 60% complete. He explained that based
on temperatures they are shutting the project down until the spring, and it will only take a few
weeks to complete at that time. Mr. Maxwell asked if they were going to have to carry the money
to next fiscal year. Ms. Busey said they will bring a budget amendment in January or February.
Mr. Brenner said most of the funds will come out of Highway, but a few thousand dollars will be
owed to ERA.

C. Update on CCNH Dryer Lint Project
Mr. Brenner reported GHR provided their proposed scope of work, which the CCNH Board gave
approval to bid and it has been posted. He said three contractors showed up at the mandatory
pre-bid meeting and all plan to submit bids this Friday. Mr. Brenner said he will report next month
on the bids and take them to the CCNH Board for approval.

D. Update on CCNH Fire Damper Project
Mr. Brenner explained the purpose of fire dampers. He said they knew the nursing home had
about 500, but because of litigation with the contractor when the nursing home was complete,
they never received final as-built drawings. He noted that they had asked various contractors
that had worked on the project and the City of Urbana, but no one had as-builts. Mr. Brenner
said that GHR found another 200 dampers another project they did about five years ago. He said
that Kirk Kirkland spent time going through the volumes of material from the construction
project, including change orders. He said they are now looking at about 1,000 fire dampers. He
explained they need to do this project because IDPH requires the working condition of the fire
dampers has to be done every four years. Mr. Brenner said the nursing home has not kept up
with that and said they need to have everything certified as working by April 15, 2016. He will go
to the CCNH Board for approval to put a bid out, but the cost is unknown at this time. He said
they will see what the bids come in at and what ability the nursing home has to cover the costs.
He noted that this is a very significant issue and has been pushed forward as quickly as possible.

IX. Chair's Report
None

Mr. Maxwell wished all a Merry Christmas and thanked the committee members for all their hard
work this year. He said he looks forward to working with everyone again next year.

Mr. Maxwell stated the next meeting will be Tuesday, January 5, 2016 at 6:30 p.m.

X. Designation of Items to be Placed on the Consent Agenda
None

XI. Adjournment
MOTION by Mr. Hartke to adjourn; seconded by Mr. Rosales. There being no further business, Mr.
Maxwell adjourned the meeting at 7:18 p.m.

**please note the minutes reflect the order of the agenda and may not necessarily reflect the order of business conducted at the meeting.

Champaign County Board
Facilities Committee 4 December 1, 2015



	MINUTES – Approved 2/8/2016
	Absent
	Present
	MINUTES
	I. Call to Order
	II. Roll Call
	III. Approval of Agenda
	MOTION by Mr. Rosales to approve the agenda; seconded by Mr. Hartke. Upon vote, the MOTION CARRIED unanimously.
	IV. Approval of Minutes- November 3, 2015
	V. Public Participation
	None
	A. Update on Courthouse Window Replacement Project
	B. Update on Precast Concrete Panel Repair Project
	C. Update on CCNH Dryer Lint Project
	D. Update on CCNH Fire Damper Project
	Mr. Brenner explained the purpose of fire dampers. He said they knew the nursing home had about 500, but because of litigation with the contractor when the nursing home was complete, they never received final as-built drawings. He noted that they had ...

	IX. Chair’s Report
	X. Designation of Items to be Placed on the Consent Agenda





Accessibility Report





		Filename: 

		151201minutesApproved.pdf









		Report created by: 

		



		Organization: 

		







[Enter personal and organization information through the Preferences > Identity dialog.]



Summary



The checker found problems which may prevent the document from being fully accessible.





		Needs manual check: 2



		Passed manually: 0



		Failed manually: 0



		Skipped: 1



		Passed: 25



		Failed: 4







Detailed Report





		Document





		Rule Name		Status		Description



		Accessibility permission flag		Passed		Accessibility permission flag must be set



		Image-only PDF		Passed		Document is not image-only PDF



		Tagged PDF		Passed		Document is tagged PDF



		Logical Reading Order		Needs manual check		Document structure provides a logical reading order



		Primary language		Passed		Text language is specified



		Title		Failed		Document title is showing in title bar



		Bookmarks		Passed		Bookmarks are present in large documents



		Color contrast		Needs manual check		Document has appropriate color contrast



		Page Content





		Rule Name		Status		Description



		Tagged content		Passed		All page content is tagged



		Tagged annotations		Passed		All annotations are tagged



		Tab order		Failed		Tab order is consistent with structure order



		Character encoding		Passed		Reliable character encoding is provided



		Tagged multimedia		Passed		All multimedia objects are tagged



		Screen flicker		Passed		Page will not cause screen flicker



		Scripts		Passed		No inaccessible scripts



		Timed responses		Passed		Page does not require timed responses



		Navigation links		Passed		Navigation links are not repetitive



		Forms





		Rule Name		Status		Description



		Tagged form fields		Passed		All form fields are tagged



		Field descriptions		Passed		All form fields have description



		Alternate Text





		Rule Name		Status		Description



		Figures alternate text		Passed		Figures require alternate text



		Nested alternate text		Passed		Alternate text that will never be read



		Associated with content		Passed		Alternate text must be associated with some content



		Hides annotation		Passed		Alternate text should not hide annotation



		Other elements alternate text		Passed		Other elements that require alternate text



		Tables





		Rule Name		Status		Description



		Rows		Passed		TR must be a child of Table, THead, TBody, or TFoot



		TH and TD		Passed		TH and TD must be children of TR



		Headers		Failed		Tables should have headers



		Regularity		Passed		Tables must contain the same number of columns in each row and rows in each column



		Summary		Skipped		Tables must have a summary



		Lists





		Rule Name		Status		Description



		List items		Passed		LI must be a child of L



		Lbl and LBody		Passed		Lbl and LBody must be children of LI



		Headings





		Rule Name		Status		Description



		Appropriate nesting		Failed		Appropriate nesting










Back to Top

